



## ***Azzedine TOUNÉS***

Associate Professor in Entrepreneurship

Chambéry Graduate School of Business

Savoie Technolac

12 avenue du lac d'Annecy

F - 73381 Le Bourget du lac Cedex

☎ ESC CHAMBERY +33 (0)4 79 25 32 54 – Fax : +33 (0)4 79 25 33 54

a.tounes@esc-chambery.fr

**Tounés Azzedine** is a professor at the Chambéry Graduate School of Business, Savoy. He holds a Ph.D. in Management Sciences and specialized in the field of entrepreneurship. His areas of publication are the process of business venturing, entrepreneurship teaching, the entrepreneur and sustainable entrepreneurship. Currently, he is supervising two doctoral students in the areas of sustainable entrepreneurship in collaboration with Professor Karim Messeghem.

He is a reviewer for two journals, the RIPME (Revue Internationale PME) and the Revue Algérienne de Management. He also participates as a reviewer for various conferences (Académie de l'Entrepreneuriat, CIFEPM, AUF - Entrepreneurship network). He is a member of the Board of the Académie de l'Entrepreneuriat.

His teaching specializations concern business venturing, business games and transfer of a company/Corporate recovery. He is responsible of the specialization “entrepreneurship in very small enterprises / small and medium-sized enterprises”.

## EDUCATION

---

2003	Ph.D in entrepreneurship, Rouen University, France “Entrepreneurial intent: a comparative research between Entrepreneurship graduate students and Management graduate students not attending entrepreneurship courses”
1998	Master’s in Management, Rouen University, France
1993	Diploma of the "Ecole Nationale d'Administration", Algiers

## TEACHING EXPERIENCE

---

2005- Present	Professor of entrepreneurship at THE Chambéry Graduate School of Business
1998 - 2005	Professor at Rouen University
2003-2005	Professor at Amiens Business School

## OTHER PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCES

Consultant at the Rouen Chamber of Commerce and Industry, France

Senior executive in the Ministry of Economy, Algeria

## PUBLICATIONS

### *Articles*

The emergence of the concepts of sustainable development and corporate social responsibility through time and space, Journal of Modern Accounting and Auditing, (in collaboration with Fafani GRIBAA, Wafa CHAKROUN): article accepted for publication in 2011

L’enseignement de l’entrepreneuriat en France : et si on explorait des voies cognitives ? Revue Algérienne de Management, n° 4, July-December 2008, 27-41.

Evolution de la recherche dans le champ de l'entrepreneuriat, *Revue Algérienne de Management*, n° 1, January-June 2007, 78-91.

L'odyssée d'un concept et les multiples figures de l'entrepreneur, *La Documentation Française, Problèmes Économiques*, numéro spécial : "L'entreprise : défis et enjeux", sélection d'articles français et étrangers, n° 2.918, February 2007, 7-16 (in collaboration with Alain FAYOLLE).

L'odyssée d'un concept et les multiples figures de l'entrepreneur, *Revue des Sciences de Gestion*, n° 220-221, July to October 2006, 17-30 (in collaboration with Alain FAYOLLE).

Les formules d'intéressement : un dispositif réglementaire au service de l'innovation, *Revue des Sciences de Gestion*, n° 217, January-February 2006, 69-81.

L'intention entrepreneuriale des étudiants : le cas français, *Revue des Sciences de Gestion*, n° 219, May-June 2006, p. 57-65.

### ***Chapters in books***

L'intention entrepreneuriale : théories et modèles, in : Riadh Zghal (supervised by), *L'entrepreneuriat : théories, acteurs et pratiques*, p. 73-95, Sanabil (Publishing Company), Med, 2007.

### ***Conference presentations***

An exploratory model of the environmental intention of SME/SMI's Tunisian managers, Forum IV EISD, International Conference for Environment, Innovation and Sustainable Development, Marseille, October 7-8, 2010 (in collaboration with Fafani GRIBAA and Karim MESSEGHEM).

Un modèle exploratoire de l'intention environnementale des dirigeants de PME/PMI tunisiennes, 10<sup>th</sup> Congrès International Francophone en Entrepreneuriat et PME (CIFEPME), "*Interdisciplinarité de la recherche en entrepreneuriat et de la recherche en PME*", Bordeaux, 27-29 octobre 2010 (in collaboration with Fafani GRIBAA and Karim MESSEGHEM).

A spatio-temporal odyssey around the concepts of sustainable development and corporate social responsibility: boundaries to be determined?, International Council for Small Business (ICSB) World Conference, Cincinnati, Ohio, USA, June 24-27, 2010 (in collaboration with Fafani GRIBAA, Wafa CHAKROUN).

Impacts de pédagogies de projets réels versus fictifs sur l'apprentissage entrepreneurial des étudiants, 6<sup>th</sup> congrès de l'Académie de l'Entrepreneuriat, "*Entreprendre dans une économie durable de la connaissance*", Nice, 19-21 novembre 2009 (in collaboration with Alain FAYOLLE and Narjisse LASSAS-CLERC).

Performance sociale des entreprises et dispositifs de mesure : un panorama théorique, colloquium organised in partnership with ISEOR and Academy Of Management. "*Les indicateurs d'évaluation de la responsabilité sociale et environnementale des entreprises*", Lyon, 8-10 June 2009 (in collaboration with CHAKROUN Wafa).

Une structuration de la mesure de la performance environnementale à travers des référentiels internationaux, colloquium organised in partnership with ISEOR and the Academy Of Management. "*Les indicateurs d'évaluation de la responsabilité sociale et environnementale des entreprises*", Lyon, 8-10 June 2009 (in collaboration with Fafani GRIBAA).

The Effects of Real vs. Virtual Business Planning as a Learning Process, Babson College Entrepreneurship Research Conference, June 3- 6, 2009, Massachusetts, USA (in collaboration with Alain FAYOLLE, Narjisse LASSAS-CLERC).

Une odyssée spatio-temporelle autour du DD et de la RSE : deux concepts aux frontières indéfinies, 6<sup>th</sup> International Congress of ADERSE (Association pour le Développement de l'Enseignement et de la Recherche sur la Responsabilité Sociale de l'Entreprise), Pau, 22-23 January 2009 (in collaboration with Wafa CHAKROUN and Fafani GRIBAA).

Cultural influences on the managerial behavior of Algerian entrepreneurs, International Council for Small Business (ICSB) World Conference, Halifax, Canada, June 2008 (in collaboration with Khalil ASSALA).

Influences culturelles sur des comportements managériaux d'entrepreneurs algériens, 5<sup>th</sup> congrès de l'Académie de l'Entrepreneuriat, *"Innovation et évolution des pratiques entrepreneuriales"*, Sherbrooke, Canada, October 2007 (in collaboration with Khalil ASSALA).

An Analysis Framework of Entrepreneurship Teaching in French Business Schools, INTENT (Internationalizing Entrepreneurship Education and Training) 17<sup>th</sup> global conference, Gdansk, Poland, 8-11 July 2007.

Des singularités de l'entrepreneuriat social et solidaire dans le champ de la formation, 10<sup>th</sup> Science Days of the Agence Universitaire de la Francophonie, entrepreneurship network, *"Les mutations entrepreneuriales"*, Antananarivo, Madagascar, 23-26 May 2007.

Des spécificités du processus entrepreneurial dans un contexte solidaire : une étude dans le secteur de la formation, 8<sup>th</sup> Congrès International Francophone en Entrepreneuriat et PME (CIFEPME), *"L'internationalisation des PME et ses conséquences sur les stratégies entrepreneuriales"*, Fribourg, Switzerland, 25-27 October 2006.

Students' Entrepreneurial Intention in France, Academy of Management Annual Meeting, *"Knowledge, Action and the Public Concern"*, Atlanta, Georgia 11-16 August 2006.

Un cadre d'analyse des pratiques pédagogiques entrepreneuriales en France, 2<sup>nd</sup> Days of Educational practices in Entrepreneurship in the Mediterranean countries, Tunis, 25-26 April 2006.

Le processus de création d'entreprise : contingences entre intention et décision, 3<sup>rd</sup> Day of the Entrepreneurial spirit, *"L'Esprit Entrepreneurial, facteur de développement durable"*, Ouargla (Algeria), 11-12 April 2006.

A major stage of entrepreneurial process: the intention, 4<sup>th</sup> European Summer University, "*Entrepreneurship in Europe: revival of the teaching practices*", Paris, 28 September - 1 October 2004.

Entrepreneurial intention of students: the French case, 4<sup>th</sup> International Entrepreneurship Conference, "*Entrepreneurship: contexts, locales and values in Europe*", Paris, 22-24 September 2004.

Enseignement de l'entrepreneuriat en France : un cadre exploratoire, 3<sup>rd</sup> Congress of *Académie de l'Entrepreneuriat*, "Itinéraires d'entrepreneurs", Lyon, 31 March to 1 April 2004.

A general analytical framework of entrepreneurship education in France, INTENT (*Internationalizing Entrepreneurship Education and Training*), Grenoble, 8-10 September 2003.

Un cadre analytique de l'enseignement de l'entrepreneuriat en France : un outil au profit de l'innovation pédagogique, *8th Science Days of Agence Universitaire de la Francophonie, entrepreneurship network*, "Entrepreneuriat et innovation", Rouen, 21-24 May, 2003.

Une modélisation théorique de l'intention entrepreneuriale, *7th Science Days of Agence Universitaire de la Francophonie, entrepreneurship network*, "Formation et entrepreneuriat", Mauritius Island, 4-6 July, 2001.

Influence des facteurs personnels et contextuels dans le processus de création d'entreprise : prédiction de l'acte d'entreprendre, *21<sup>st</sup> National Days of studies of the Institut Psychanalyse et Management*, "Autour de la Création", Montpellier 14-15 June, 2001.

### ***Research Papers***

Une analyse des pratiques de l'intéressement en France, *Research papers of Agence Universitaire de la Francophonie, entrepreneurship network*, December 2005, n° 05-77.

L'entrepreneur : l'odyssée d'un concept, *Research papers of Agence Universitaire de la Francophonie, entrepreneurship network*, May 2004, n° 03-73.

Un cadre d'analyse de l'enseignement de l'entrepreneuriat en France, *Research papers of Agence Universitaire de la Francophonie, entrepreneurship network*, June 2003, n° 03-69.

## **RESEARCH INTERESTS**

Entrepreneurship teaching

Entrepreneurs

Business Venture processes

Sustainable entrepreneurship

## **ACADEMIC COMMITTEES**

Reviewer for:

Revue Internationale PME (RIPME)

Revue Algérienne de Management ;

Académie de l'Entrepreneuriat Conference

Agence Universitaire de la Francophonie (AUF), entrepreneurship network

CIFEPME Conference (Congrès International Francophone en Entrepreneuriat et PME).

Book "*Ordre et désordre : imbrication et complémentarité des notions d'ordre et de désordre*",

in : Aurore Vernay and Charlotte Hug (supervised by), L'Harmattan Edition, 2009

## **PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS**

Member of

Board of Directors of the Académie de l'Entrepreneuriat et de l'Innovation

Board of Directors of the Académie Algérienne de l'Entrepreneuriat

AIREPME (Association Internationale de Recherche en entrepreneuriat et PME)

AUF (Agence Universitaire de la Francophonie), entrepreneurship network

**TEACHING SPECIALITIES**

Business planning

Business venture

Business games

Transfer of a company/Corporate recovery